THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF OSHTEMO

South Drake Road Corridor Improvement Authority (SoDA) June 7, 2023 DRAFT Minutes

The SoDA Board meeting was held in person at Township Hall in the North Conference Room. The meeting was called to order by Chair Ashley at 12:02 p.m.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Corey Ashley, Chair Joe Gesmundo Cheri Bell Dennis Patzer, Treasurer Kelly Bringman Theresa Spurr

MEMBERS ABSENT: Christine Morse Dale DeLeeuw

Also present were Iris Lubbert, Planning Director, Anna Horner, Public Works Director, and Cheri Jodoin, a member of the public.

Approval of the Agenda

There were no changes to the agenda. Chair Ashley let the agenda stand as published.

Minutes

Chair Ashley asked if there were any additions, deletions, or corrections to the Minutes of December 7, 2022. Hearing none, he asked for a motion to approve the Minutes.

Ms. Spurr made a <u>motion</u> to approve the Minutes of December 7, 2022 as presented. Ms. Bringman <u>seconded the motion</u>. <u>The motion was approved unanimously.</u>

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items

Chair Ashley asked if there was any Public Comment. Ms. Lubbert read an email received from Pamela Post, representing the Leisure Time Condominium Association Board, asking SoDA to consider plowing the new sidewalk that runs on the north side of Green Meadow. Pamela Post's email is attached to these Minutes. Cheri Jodoin, noted that she was in attendance to answer any questions the SoDA Board may have as Pamela was unable to attend.

The sidewalk under consideration is 6' wide and not located entirely within SoDA's boundaries. It was clarified that the SoDA Board was only allowed to implement projects and provide assistance for areas within their boundaries.

Ms. Horner noted that per the Township's Complete Streets Policy, property owners are responsible for clearing snow from sidewalks and that the Township is responsible for clearing snow from shared use paths. She noted that generally it takes property owners a couple years from when a new sidewalk is installed to be consistent in snow removal. She offered to reach out to the adjacent property owners.

After discussion, the Board felt it unwise and unfair to only be able to assist with clearing a section of the sidewalk. They asked that Anna Horner reach out to the neighboring property owners to help address the concerns from the Leisure Time Condominium Association Board.

Cheri Jodoin thanked the SoDA Board for the discussion. She also noted that she would be interested in becoming a SoDA Board member.

Ms. Lubbert noted that there are currently no vacant seats on the SoDA Board, but that she would note her interest and gladly take her contact information.

With there being no more public comment, Chair Ashley moved to the next item on the agenda.

2023 Election of Officers

Ms. Lubbert indicated 2023 appointments were needed for Chairperson, Vice Chair, Secretary, Treasurer, Assistant Secretary, and Assistant Treasurer. Ms. Lubbert noted that she would continue as Assistant Secretary and Assistant Treasurer. The following nominations were made:

Chair – Dennis Patzer Vice Chair – Kelly Bringman Secretary - Theresa Spurr Treasurer - Corey Ashley Assistant Secretary – Iris Lubbert Assistant Treasurer – Iris Lubbert

Mr. Ashley made a <u>motion</u> to approve the 2023 Election of Officers as nominated. Ms. Spurr <u>seconded the motion</u>. <u>The motion was approved unanimously.</u>

Treasurer's Report

Chair Ashley asked for the Treasurer's Report. Ms. Lubbert shared the 2022 end of year Treasurer's Report and the Treasurer Report for January 2023 through May 2023, unaudited.

Revenues for 2022 totaled \$78,678.56. Expenditures for 2022 totaled \$61,175.33. Expenditures for 2022 included the \$60,000 payment for the 2021 and 2022 contribution for the Drake Road path and \$1,175.33 for winter maintenance costs. SoDA has a total of \$128,248.23 in carryover funds.

There have been no expenditures to date in 2023. \$71,536.26 in tax revenue has been collected.

Board members questioned the amount of interest that had been collected in 2022. Ms. Lubbert noted that the Township's Treasurer is responsible for making those investments and the Treasurer provided insight on this topic last year. Mr. Ashley noted that he had been in contact with the Treasurer last year but that he would like to discuss this topic again with her. Ms. Lubbert will connect the SoDA Board with the Treasurer.

Mr. Patzer made a motion to approve the two Treasurer's Reports. Ms. Spurr seconded the motion. The motion was approved unanimously.

The SoDA Board asked that the outstanding balance for the Drake Road path be added to the Treasurer's report. Ms. Lubbert noted that she will include this number moving forward.

Drake Road Non-motorize path Crosswalk Markings and Signage

At their last meeting the SoDA Board requested that the Township's Public Works Department explore the feasibility and cost implications of additional crosswalk pavement markings and signage to improve the safety of pedestrians traveling along Drake Road within their boundaries. The non-motorized path along this corridor has crossings at nine (9) large commercial access drives that have significant traffic flow, and three (3) public streets: Skyridge Ave, Driftwood Ave, and Green Meadow Ave. Ms. Horner presented her departments findings which were provided in the meeting packet.

After discussion, the SoDA Board unanimously agreed that Mr. Ashley would reach out to the Road Commission of Kalamazoo County about the crossings on the public roads and that the SoDA Board would proceed with installing the new crosswalk markings on the private areas with a total project cost of \$5,232 with up to a 10% contingency.

The SoDA Board noted that they will need to plan to cover the upkeep of the new crosswalk markings in their future budgets.

The Board noted that the completion of the Drake Road path is their #1 priority.

Nonmotorized Paths Update

Anna Horner provided updates on the two nonmotorized projects within the SoDA boundary.

Drake Road Non-motorized Path: The section from Stadium Dr to KL Ave is the next priority for nonmotorized on this corridor. The Township recently received proposals for design services on this project to reengage with MDOT Office of the Rail and Amtrak. The grant funding needs to be utilized by 2025. A recent repair was completed to the damaged retaining wall by Blaze Pizza.

KL Ave Non-motorized Pathway (north side): Phase 1 of this project, Drake Rd to the east side of the US131 overpass/Concord Place Apartments, is nearing final design and right-of-way/easement negotiations in anticipation of construction in Fall of 2023. The facility will match what is on Drake Rd; a 10' wide asphalt path.

MDOT is still working on an agreement with Amtrak and is pushing for late 2023 to start construction on the US-131 overpass. This will include a full closure of KL Ave for

through traffic between 11th St and Drake Rd for approximately two years. Within this project, the path under the bridge will be completed.

Once the section of path under the bridge is completed, Phase 2, the west side of overpass to The Paddock Apartments can be constructed.

Master List of Projects

Per SoDA Board request a list of project ideas has been included in the packet. The Board reviewed the list and had no changes.

2024 Budget Discussion

Ms. Lubbert presented the proposed budget for 2024. She noted that the drafted budget generally follows the adopted 2023 budget. To date in 2023 \$71.536.26 in tax revenue has been collected. According to the Township Treasurer, the increase in collected tax revenue is due primarily to the Road Millage and increased housing values. It is anticipated that approximately the same amount of tax revenue will be collected in 2024. SoDA generally has three expenses: the annual \$30,000 payment to the Township Drake toward the Drake Road Path, Road Path maintenance, and accounting/auditing/legal fees. Following budgeting for 2023, a general budget line for 'Safety Improvements' is also proposed.

After discussion the Board agreed that a budget line of 'Safety Improvements' for 2024 was not needed and removed the line item from the proposed budget. It was agreed that the maintenance of the non-motorized crosswalk markings that are to be installed this year could come out of the 'Repairs/Maintenance' line item.

Mr. Patzer made a <u>motion</u> to approve the 2024 budget with the discussed amendment. Mr. Ashley <u>seconded the motion</u>. <u>The motion was approved unanimously</u>.

2022 Informational Session Update

Ms. Lubbert noted that Public Act 57 of 2018 requires that Corridor Improvement Authorities hold at least two informational meetings a year. These meetings do not have to be official Board meetings but can be designed as Open Houses to inform the public of the goals of the Board and the projects that the South Drake Road Corridor Improvement Authority is financing. For efficiency, the SoDA Board agreed to combining the two required Open Houses with the two Open Houses required for the Downtown Development Authority (DDA).

The DDA held an Open House on May 15th to introduce and collect initial feedback on an upcoming road reconfiguration project and also utilized this meeting as one of their two required informational meetings. Given the SoDA Board's previous permissions to staff, this meeting was also designed as one of the two informational meetings required for SoDA.

Ms. Lubbert asked if the SoDA Board wanted to do anything specific for their second open house. The Board did not and felt that combining their open houses with the DDA was working well.

Other Business

Ms. Lubbert shared her drafted Accomplishments, Goals, and Vision document for SoDA that will be presented to the Township Board. Based on the budget discussion some amendments were made. The Board thanked Ms. Lubbert for her hard work.

With there being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 1:58 p.m.

Minutes prepared: 6/13/2023

Minutes approved: 12/6/2023